## Report of the Directors and

Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2017

For

**REACT Group PLC** 

Company Number: 05454010

## **CONTENTS**

	Page
Company Information	1
Executive Chairman's Statement	2
Strategic Report	4
Directors' Report	6
Report of the Independent Auditors	8
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income	15
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	16
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	17
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	18
Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	18
Company Statement of Financial Position	19
Company Statement of Changes in Equity	20
Company Statement of Cash Flows	21
Notes to the Company Statements of Cash Flows	21
Notes to the Financial Statements	22

## **Company Information**

Directors:	GM Leates CS Vermaak CN Barnes LB Innes
Secretary:	LB Innes
Registered number:	05454010 (England & Wales)
Registered office:	C/O International Registrars Limited Finsgate 5-7 Cranwood Street London EC1V 9EE
Auditors:	Jeffreys Henry LLP Finsgate 5-7 Cranwood Street London EC1V 9EE
Nominated adviser:	SPARK Advisory Partners Limited 5 St John's Lane London EC1M 4AP
Brokers:	Whitman Howard First Floor Connaught House 1-3 Mount Street London, W1K 3NB
	Peterhouse Corporate Finance Limited 3 <sup>rd</sup> Floor New Liverpool House 15 Eldon Street London EC2M 7LD
Website Address:	http://www.reactplc.co.uk

# Executive Chairman's Statement For the year ended 30 September 2017

The last financial year has been one of significant change and challenges. Trading in the year under review was difficult as consolidation within the industry, as well as budget constraints within our public sector customer base, has resulted in profit margins being squeezed, particularly in the case of larger customers with a 24 hour service guarantee. However the strategy of targeting higher value contracts is starting to pay dividends as the Group has secured new business with a major London hospital, a regional retailer and a train operator, which will increase our recurring revenue base and improve margins as the volumes increase.

Following the closure of the loss making EPUK environmental remediation business in December 2016 management are now focussed on the core specialist cleaning business. Our marketplace is shifting with many larger organisations outsourcing specialist cleaning services, however if we can work in conjunction with key Facilities Management (FM) companies, and continue to build on our solid reputation for quality and reliability to become the supplier of choice in our target markets, the outlook for the business is positive.

#### **Financial Review**

During the year ended 30 September 2017 turnover from continuing operations increased by 8.8% to £2.6m (2016: £2.4m) due primarily to new ad hoc work for a large London Hospital and additional work for a major FM company. Gross margin fell from 41.7% to 31.4% due to an increase in larger public sector business which offers a more secure revenue stream, albeit at a lower entry level margin due to the requirement to provide a 24/7 service guarantee, and the labour intensity necessary in the delivery of the service. After administrative expenses of £1,223,000 (2016: £1,159,000) the operating loss from continuing operations amounted to £393,000 (2016: £147,000).

After higher than expected costs of £45,000 (2016: £141,000) relating to the closure of our loss making subsidiary, EPUK Limited, the loss for the year was £438,000 (2016: £288,000).

The cash outflow from continuing operating activities amounted to £184,000 (2016: £592,000). After capital expenditure of £111,000 (2016: £210,000) the Group had cash balances of £631,000 at 30 September 2017 (2016: £931,000). Group debtors, which are equivalent to approximately 80 days (2016: 64 days) are higher than anticipated. Consequently additional resources have been directed at credit control in the current financial year to release additional cash from working capital.

## Strategy

REACT is a specialist cleaner capable of dealing with diverse and extreme cleaning problems whose common factor is typically that they are beyond the "usual" cleaning tasks of facilities managers and other sub-contractors or in-house service providers. REACT's service offering typically supplements these cleaners for those tasks which require specialist capital equipment or clothing, are hard to reach, in hazardous or difficult locations or require operatives to have specialist health and safety training or specialist accreditations.

There have been a number of changes at Board level which have enabled the Company to start to focus its efforts on bidding for significant contracts in its core areas of expertise. The Company has also moved into new offices in Swadlincote so that it is now completely separate from Autoclenz and no longer relies on it for any administrative services. When bidding for new business we have to be competitive, but we

## Executive Chairman's Statement For the year ended 30 September 2017(continued)

Believe there is value to be added from building a relationship with FMs and end users through the provision of additional services. Furthermore, the nature of the contracts will give us better visibility of future revenue streams, which will enable us to rationalise our cost base and improve margins without affecting the quality of our service.

## Outlook

Although market conditions remain difficult current trading is encouraging but the Company is still going through a period of change and 2018 is expected to be a challenging year. As previously reported in September 2017, the Group secured its first large contract for £200,000 with a major London hospital, through a relationship with a major FM company, and an additional contract for £206,000 was awarded for the same end user in March 2018. In addition the Group has started to broaden its customer base with new business won in industries including transport and retail where our core expertise can be applied. Our cash balances currently stands at approximately £500,000, though we expect further cash to be extracted out of improved working capital management practices. We will continue to focus our efforts on the larger contracts to improve the quality of the customer base and to raise our profile in our target markets. There are still a number of challenges facing the business but we are optimistic the changes we are making will deliver value for shareholders in the future.

The Board greatly appreciates the efforts of all the staff and would like to thank them for their hard work during this period of change.

Gill Leates

Chairman 26 March 2018

## Strategic Report For the year ended 30 September 2017

#### PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE GROUP

#### Dependence on key customers

REACT generates a significant proportion of its revenues from a limited number of customers. It may prove difficult to gain new business and to achieve turnover growth from such customers. The Group are aiming to mitigate this risk by building relationships with large FM companies and targeting larger corporate customers from the private sector.

#### Attraction and retention of key management and employees

The successful operation of the Group will depend partly upon the performance and expertise of its management and employees. As part of a wholesale review of the business all training is being reviewed and any personnel requiring additional training will be put on relevant courses over the next few months. All services offered within the business are being assessed and relevant Key Performance Indicators are being put in place so that performance can be monitored at all levels of the Company.

#### Future funding requirements

The Group made a trading loss in the year ended 30 September 2017. If the Group's return to profitability is slower than expected the company may need to seek additional funding to meet its working capital requirements. However management regularly monitor the Group's performance against budget and its overall cash position.

#### Health and safety

Given the nature of the business our operators are often working in challenging conditions. As a consequence the Group takes its responsibilities with regard to the health and safety of its employees very seriously. A review of working practices is currently underway to ensure that they are appropriate for our business and that the high standards expected are maintained throughout the Group.

#### FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The directors constantly monitor the financial risks and uncertainties facing the Group with particular reference to the exposure of credit risk and liquidity risk. They are confident that suitable policies are in place and that all material financial risks have been considered. The financial risk management objectives and policies can be found within note 21 of the financial statements.

#### **KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)**

Financial: The key financial indicators are as follows:

	2017	2016
Revenue	£2.64m	£2.43m
Gross margin Loss from continuing operations	31.4% £393,000	41.7% £147,000
Cash	£631,000	£931,000

The board recognises the importance of KPI's in driving appropriate behaviours and enabling the monitoring of Group performance. As the business now has additional overheads following its AIM listing, and separation from Autoclenz Limited, the main challenge now is to increase revenue at more attractive margins. Cash at the 30 September 2017 amounted to £631,000 which was in line with expectations.

**Non-financial**: The board is reviewing how it can monitor and improve customer relationships, the motivation and retention of employees as well as service quality and brand awareness.

## Strategic Report

## For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

#### **CORPORATE GOVERNANCE**

The Company, whose shares are admitted to trading on AIM, is not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. The Directors fully support high standards of corporate governance and have chosen to make the following disclosures which are deemed to be the most relevant, given the nature, size and scope of the Companies activities. The information in this Corporate Governance Report is not subject to audit. The Company is subject to the UK City Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

#### The Board and responsibilities

The Board currently consists of an Executive Chairman, two executive Directors and one non-executive Director. There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the executive directors and the Board considers the non-executive director to be independent of management. The composition of the Board ensures that no single individual or group of individuals is able to dominate the decision-making process. Details of the individual Directors and their biographies are set out on the Group's website <a href="https://www.reactplc.co.uk">www.reactplc.co.uk</a>. The directors evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board when defining the role and capabilities required for new appointments.

The Board is responsible for management of the business, setting the strategic direction and policies. The Board meets regularly to attend to any issues which require the attention of the Board and oversees the financial position of the Company monitoring the business and affairs on behalf of the Shareholders, to whom the Directors are accountable. The primary duty of the Board is to act in the best interests of REACT Group PLC at all times. The Board will also address issues relating to internal control and the Company's approach to risk management.

The day-to-day management of the Group's business is delegated to the Executive Directors. During the year ended 30 September 2017 the Board held 12 scheduled meetings.

### **Audit Committee**

The Audit Committee, which currently comprises Lesley Innes and Gill Leates, will meet not less than twice a year. The committee will be responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of auditors and the audit fee and for ensuring that the financial performance of the Group is properly monitored and reported. In addition, the Audit Committee will receive and review reports from management and the auditors relating to the interim report, the annual report and accounts and the internal control systems of REACT Group PLC.

#### Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, which comprises Gill Leates and Lesley Innes will meet not less than once each year. The committee will be responsible for the review and recommendation of the scale and structure of remuneration for senior management, including any bonus arrangements or the award of share options with due regard to the interests of the Shareholders and the performance of REACT Group PLC.

#### Share dealing code

The Company has adopted and will operate a share dealing code governing the share dealings of the directors of the Company and applicable employees with a view to ensuring compliance with the AIM Rules.

### Investor relations

The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. Copies of all public announcements with shareholders are published on the Group's website www.reactplc.co.uk.

On behalf of the Board

Gill Leates 26 March 2018

## **Directors' Report**

## For the year ended 30 September 2017

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year to 30 September 2017.

#### PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Group continued to be that of a specialist cleaning and decontamination service to the public sector.

## **BUSINESS REVIEW AND RESULTS FOR THE YEAR**

In accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006 the Group chooses to report the review of the business, the future outlook and the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group in the Strategic Report on pages 4-5. No dividend is payable in respect of the year (2016: £Nil).

#### DIRECTORS

The directors who served the company during the period and up to the date of this report were as follows:

#### GM Leates

C Vermaak (appointed 2 October 2017)

CN Barnes (appointed 27 October 2017)

LB Innes (appointed 13 February 2018)

G Rummery (resigned 5 October 2017)

MK Collingbourne (resigned 11 September 2017)

S Metcalfe (appointed 10 April 2017, resigned18 September 2017)

RS Woolley (resigned 25 January 2017, reappointed 18 September 2017, resigned 13 February 2018)

Details of directors' remuneration is set out in Note 4 to the accounts.

The directors of the Group held the following beneficial interests in the shares and share options of REACT Group PLC at 30 September 2017. There has been no change in Mrs GM Leates shareholding since the date of this report.

	Issued Sha	Issued Share Capital		rants
	Ordinary	-	Ordinary	Warrant
	shares of	Percentage	shares of	exercise
	0.25p each	Held	0.25p each	price
GM Leates	585,238	0.21	2,380,000	1.68p
G Rummery	14,523,809	5.27	-	-
M Collingbourne	1,488,096	0.54	_	-
RS Woolley	-	-	-	-

The share warrants held by GM Leates were granted on 17 August 2015 and are exercisable at 1.68p at any time after 17 August 2016 up to 17 August 2025.

#### SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

Substantial shareholdings as at 21 March 2018 were as follows:

Helium Rising Stars	23.74%
Octopus Investments Nominees Limited	13.43%
Mr G Stavrinidis	6.15%
Mr C Clay	4.04%

## **Directors' Report**

## For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

#### FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's exposure to financial risk is set out in note 21 to the accounts.

#### PUBLICATION OF ACCOUNTS ON GROUP WEBSITE

Financial statements are published on the Group's website. The maintenance and integrity of the website is the responsibility of the directors. The directors' responsibilities also extend to the financial statements contained therein

#### **GOING CONCERN**

The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group is a going concern. When assessing the foreseeable future, the directors have looked at the budget for the next 12 months from the date of this report, the cash at bank available as at the date of approval of this report and are satisfied that the Group should be able to cover its operating losses. After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt a going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements.

#### STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the directors have, as required by the AIM Rules for Companies of the London Stock Exchange, elected to prepare financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use in the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether the company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that the financial statements comply with the above requirements.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

#### STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the company's auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of the information.

#### **AUDITOR**

Jeffreys Henry LLP will be proposed for re-appointment as auditors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board **Gill Leates** 26 March 2018

For the year ended 30 September 2017

#### Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of React Group PLC (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries (the 'Group') for the year ended 30 September 2017 which comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, company statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of financial position, company statement of financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards.

#### In our opinion:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 September 2017 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;
- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS's as adopted by the European Union; and
- · the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

#### **Basis for opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
  cast significant doubt about the Group's or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going
  concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
  statements are authorised for issue.

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

## Our audit approach

#### Overview

#### Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

- Possible impairment of investments and goodwill
- · Presentation of financial statements on a going concern basis
- Recoverability of trade receivables

These are explained in more detail below

#### Materiality:

Group financial statements:

- £51,000 (30 September 2016: £41,000)
- · Based on the average of the following:
- a. 1.5% of revenue
- b. 2% of Gross Assets
- c. 10% of Net Profit

#### Company financial statements:

- £41,000 (30 September 2016: £31,000)
- · Based on the average of the following:
- a. 2% of Gross Assets
- b. 10% of Net Profit

## Audit scope

- We conducted audits of the complete financial information of React Group PLC, React Specialist Cleaning Limited, React Occupational Hygiene Services Limited, React Environmental Services Limited, and React SC Holdings Limited.
- We performed specified procedures over certain account balances and transaction classes at other Group companies.
- Taken together, the Group companies over which we performed our audit procedures accounted for 100% of the absolute profit before tax (i.e. the sum of the numerical values without regard to whether they were profits or losses for the relevant reporting units) and 100% of revenue.

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

## Key audit matters

Key audit matter	How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Possible impairment of investments and goodwill – Company Risk	
Given the Group is loss making, an impairment review of both investments and goodwill is a key risk.	We carried out a review of the investments held in the subsidiaries and the goodwill carried.
Directors believe that while the Group is loss making currently it will be cash generative in 2019.	We reviewed management's impairment workings provided and audited the assumptions used.
Director feel it is prudent not to write down the investments or goodwill as the underlying business' are still expected to be cash generative.	We reviewed management's basis for impairment across the Company and agree with their approach.
Presentation of financial statements on a going concern basis	
Given the Group is loss making £438,000 (2016: £288,000), a going concern review is required to ensure that management have adequate cash reserves to continue as a going concern.	We have reviewed managements going concern review and feel that their review has been robust.
The directors have stated that while they anticipate the Group to be loss making for the next twelve months, they project breaking even by 2019.	Having reviewed the cash reserves, we believe that while the Group will be loss making it, it will have enough cash to continue as a going concern for the
The directors believe they have adequate cash reserves to continue as a going concern 2017: £631,000, 2016: £931,000)	next twelve months.
Recoverability of trade receivables	
At year end the Group had trade receivables outstanding of £712,000 (2016: £513,000).	We have reviewed old bad debts and discussed with management as to why they remain uncollected.
There is still £90,000 outstanding at the current date relating to older balances.	On review of these we agree with management's adjustment of a provision of bad debts for older balances of £40,000 (2016: £nil).
Management have taken the view that a bad debt provision of £40,000 (2016: £nil), will be adequate.	Salarioso of 240,000 (2010. 2111).

## Our application of materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

	Group financial statements	Company financial statements
Overall materiality	£51,000 (30 September 2016:	£41,000 (30 September 2016:
	£41,000).	£31,000).
How we determined it	Based on the average of 10% of	Based on the average of 10% of
	profit before tax, 2% of gross	loss before tax and 2% of gross
	assets and 1.5% of Revenue.	assets.
Rationale for	We believe that profit before tax is	We believe that profit before tax is
benchmark applied	a primary measure used by	a primary measure used by
	shareholders in assessing the	shareholders in assessing the
	performance of the Group whilst	performance of the Company whilst
	gross asset values and revenue	gross asset values are a
	are a representation of the size of	representation of the size of the
	the Group; both are generally	Company; both are generally
	accepted auditing benchmarks.	accepted auditing benchmarks.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between £5,000 and £41,000.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £2,550 (Group audit) (30 September 2016: £2,000) and £2,000 (Company audit) (30 September 2016: £1,500) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

#### An overview of the scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgments, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

## How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate.

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of 5 reporting units, comprising the Group's operating businesses and holding companies.

We performed audits of the complete financial information of React Group PLC, React Specialist Cleaning Limited, React Occupational Hygiene Services Limited, React Environmental Services Limited, React SC Holdings Limited reporting units, which were individually financially significant and accounted for 100% of the Group's revenue and 100% of the Group's absolute profit before tax (i.e. the sum of the numerical values without regard to whether they were profits or losses for the relevant reporting units). We also performed specified audit procedures over goodwill and investments, as well as certain account balances and transaction classes that we regarded as material to the Group at the 5 reporting units, with all five based in the United Kingdom.

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

#### Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

#### Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

#### Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
- · certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

## Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 7, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

#### Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the parent company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
  activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
  responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
  responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

## Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

#### Other matters which we are required to address

We were appointed as auditors by the Company at the Annual General Meeting on 8 September 2014. Our total uninterrupted period of engagement is 3 years, covering the periods ending 30 September 2015 to 30 September 2017.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the parent company and we remain independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee.

Sanjay Parmar (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Jeffreys Henry LLP, Statutory Auditor

Finsgate 5-7 Cranwood Street London EC1V 9EE

26 March 2018

# **Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income**For the year ended 30 September 2017

	Notes	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Continuing Operations Turnover Cost of sales		2,645 (1,815)	2,432 (1,419)
Gross profit		830	1,013
Administrative expenses	5	(1,223)	(1,159)
Operating loss for the year before income tax		(393)	(146)
Income tax	6	-	(1)
Loss for the year from continuing operations  Loss for the year from discontinued operations	22	(393) (45)	(147) (141)
Loss for the year		(438)	(288)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the owners of the company		(438)	(288)
Basic and diluted loss per share - pence From continuing operations	7	0.14p	0.05p
From discontinuing operations	7	0.02p	0.05p

The notes on pages 22 to 38 form part of these financial statements

# **Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As at 30 September 2017**

ASSETS	Notes	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Non-current assets Intangible assets	9	1,400	1,444
Plant & equipment	10	232	252
		1,632	1,696
Current assets			
Trade and other receivables	12	760	788
Cash at bank and in hand	13	631	931
		1,391	1,719
TOTAL ASSETS		3,023	3,415
EQUITY			
Shareholders' Equity Called up share capital	14	689	689
Share premium	17	4,889	4,889
Reverse acquisition reserve		(5,726)	(5,726)
Capital redemption reserve		3,337	3,337
Merger relief reserve		1,328	1,328
Share based payments		(4.025)	22
Accumulated deficit		(1,935)	(1,497)
Total Equity		2,604	3,042
LIABILITIES Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	15	398	352
Non - current Liabilities			
Deferred tax liability	16	<u>21</u>	21
TOTAL LIABILITIES		419	373
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	•	3,023	3,415
TOTAL EQUIT AND LIABILITIES	•		=======================================

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

GM Leates **Director** 

Company Registration no. 05454010

The notes on pages 22 to 38 form part of these financial statement

## Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 September 2017

	Share capital	Share Premium	Merger Relief Reserve	Capital Redemption Reserve	Reverse Acquisition Reserve	Share based payment s	Accumulated deficit	Total equity
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Balance at 1 October 2015	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	(5,726)	-	(1,209)	3,308
Share based payment charge	-	-	-	-	-	22	-	22
Loss for the period	-	-	-	-	-	-	(288)	(288)
Balance at 30 September 2016	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	(5,726)	22	(1,497)	3,042
Balance at 1 October 2016	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	(5,726)	22	(1,497)	3,042
Loss for the year	-	-	-	-	-	-	(438)	(438)
Balance at 30 September 2017	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	(5,726)	22	(1,935)	2,604

Share capital is the amount subscribed for shares at nominal value. Share premium represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

Merger relief reserve arises from the 100% acquisition of REACT SC Holdings Limited and REACT Specialist Cleaning Limited in August 2015 whereby the excess of the fair value of the issued ordinary share capital issued over the nominal value of these shares is transferred to this reserve in accordance with section 612 of the Companies Act 2006.

Accumulated deficit represents the cumulative losses of the Group attributable to the owners of the company.

Reverse acquisition reserve is the effect on equity of the reverse acquisition of REACT Specialist Cleaning Limited.

The capital redemption reserve represents the value of deferred shares cancelled as a result of a share buyback.

The notes on pages 22 to 38 form part of these financial statements

## Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 September 2017

## Notes

		2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities Cash utilised in operations	1	(189)	(698)
Net cash outflow from operating activities		(189)	(698)
Cash flows from investing activities Capital expenditure		(111)	(210)
Net cash outflow from investing activities		(111)	(210)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents		(300)	(908)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period		931	1,839
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	2	631	931

# Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the period ended 30 September 2017

## 1. Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash outflow from operations

	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Loss before taxation Decrease/(increase) in trade and other	(438)	(288)
receivables	28	(24)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables	51	(571)
Depreciation and amortisation charges	156	163
Loss on disposal of fixed assets	14	-
Share based payments charge	<u>-</u>	22
Net cash outflow from operations	(189)	(698)
2. Cash and cash equivalents		
4		
	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand	<del>631</del>	931

# **Company Statement of Financial Position As at 30 September 2017**

	Notes	As at 30 September 2017	As at 30 September 2016
ASSETS		£'000	£'000
Non-current assets	44	4.500	4.500
Investments Plant & equipment	11 10	1,560 1	1,560 1
Flant & equipment	10		I
		1,561	1,561
CURRENT ASSETS			
Trade and other receivables	12	860	628
Cash at bank and in hand	13	529	905
		1,389	1,533
TOTAL ASSETS		2,950	3,094
		=====	=======
EQUITY Shareholders' Equity Called up share capital Share premium Merger relief reserve	14	689 4,889 1,328	689 4,889 1,328
Capital redemption reserve Share based payments		3,337 22	3,337 22
Accumulated deficit		(7,471)	(7,264)
Total Equity		2,794	3,001
LIABILITIES CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Trade and other payables	15	156	93
TOTAL LIABILITITES		156	93
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		2,950	3,094

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

G M Leates **Director** 

Company Registration no. 05454010

The notes on pages 22 to 38 form part of these financial statements

## Company Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 September 2017

	Called up Share capital	Share Premium	Merger Relief Reserve	Capital redemption reserve	Share based payments	Accumulated deficit	Total equity
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Balance at 1 October 2015	689	4,889	1,328	3,337		(6,964)	3,279
Share based payments Loss for the year		4,009 - -	-	- -	22	(300)	22 (300)
Balance at 30 September 2016	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	22	(7,264)	3,001
Balance at 1 October	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	22	(7,264)	3,001
2016 Loss for the year	-	-	-	-	-	(207)	(207)
Balance at 30 September 2017	689	4,889	1,328	3,337	22	(7,471)	2,794

Share capital is the amount subscribed for shares at nominal value. Share premium represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

Merger relief reserve arises from the 100% acquisition of REACT SC Holdings Limited and REACT Specialist Cleaning Limited in August 2015 whereby the excess of the fair value of the issued ordinary share capital issued over the nominal value of these shares is transferred to this reserve in accordance with section 612 of the Companies Act 2006.

Accumulated deficit represents the cumulative losses of the company attributable to the owners of the company.

The capital redemption reserve represents the value of deferred shares cancelled as a result of a share buyback.

The notes on pages 22 to 38 form part of these financial statements

## **Company Statement of Cash Flows**

For the year ended 30 September 2017

	Notes	Year ended 30 September 2017 £'000	Year ended 30 September 2016 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities Cash utilised from operations	1	(376)	(863)
Net cash outflow from operating activities  Cash flows from investing activities		(376)	(863)
Purchase of subsidiary			(10)
Net cash outflow from investing activities			(10)
Decrease in cash and equivalents  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of		(376)	(873)
period		905	1,778
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	2	529 ———	905

## **Notes to the Company Statement of Cash Flows**

## 1. Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash generated from operations

	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Operating loss Increase in trade and other receivables Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables	(207) (232) 63	(300) (388) (207) 22
Share based payments Impairment of investment	<u>-</u>	10
Net cash outflow from operations	(376)	(863)
2. Cash and cash equivalents		
	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand	529 ————	905

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

#### 1. General Information

## Basis of preparation and consolidation

The Company is based in the United Kingdom and has been incorporated in England and Wales. Details of the registered office, the officers and advisors to the Company are presented on the Company Information page at the start of this report.

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the company and its subsidiaries ('the Group') as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are therefore eliminated in full. Where the company has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

The equity structure appearing in the Group financial statements reflects the equity structure of the legal parent, REACT Group PLC, including the equity instruments issued in order to effect reverse acquisition accounting. The merger relief reserve represents a premium on the issue of the ordinary shares for the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings. The relief is only available to the issuing company securing at least a 90% equity holding in the acquired undertaking in pursuance of an arrangement providing for the allotment of equity shares in the issuing company on terms that the consideration for the shares allotted is to be provided by the issue of equity shares in the other company.

#### 2. Accounting Policies

#### Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of REACT Group PLC have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations (collectively 'IFRSs') as adopted for use in the European Union and as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

## **Basis of preparation**

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the period under review.

## Going concern

Following its review of the Group's financial plans, the board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group was unable to continue as a going concern.

#### New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time in this financial period that have had a material impact on the Group.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 2. Accounting Policies (continued)

## New Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective

Reference	Title	Summary	Application date of standard (Periods commencing on or after)	Reference
Amendments to IFRS 1	First-time adoption of International Financial Reports Standards	Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (removing short-term exemptions)	1 October 2018	Amendments to IFRS 1
Amendments to IFRS 2	Share-based payments	Amendments to clarify the classification and measurement of share based payment transactions	1 October 2018	Amendments to IFRS 2
Amendment to IFRS 4	Insurance Contracts	Amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9	1 October 2018	Amendment to IFRS 4
IFRS 9	Financial Instruments	Requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and includes an expected credit losses model which replaces the current loss impairment model. Also includes the hedging amendment that was issued in 2013	1 October 2018	IFRS 9
IFRS 15	Revenue from contracts with customers	Specifies how and when to recognize revenue from contracts as well as requiring more information and relevant disclosures.	1 October 2018	IFRS 15
IFRS 16	Leases	Introduces a single accounting model for leases with no distinction between operating and finance leases.	1 October 2019	IFRS 16
IFRS 17	Insurance Contracts	Establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued.	1 October 2021	IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 28	Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures	Amendments resulting from Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle (Clarifying certain fair value measurements	1 October 2018	Amendments to IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 39	Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement	Amendments to permit entity to elect to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio of financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet the 'own use' scope exception	1 October 2018	Amendments to IAS 39
Amendments to IAS 40	Investment Property	Amendments to clarify transfers or property to or from investment property	1 October 2018	Amendments to IAS 40

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group. The Group does not intend to apply any of these pronouncements early.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 2. Accounting Policies (continued)

#### Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods and services supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group bases its estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

## Rendering of services

The Group provides extreme cleaning services. For rendering of services, revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction and assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

#### **Taxation**

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

#### (i) Current tax

Current taxes are based on the results shown in the financial statements and are calculated according to local tax rules using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date. Income tax is recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period, directly in equity. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

#### (ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differenced, and the carrying forward or unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 2. Accounting Policies (continued)

#### Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less any impairment.

### Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

#### Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to the initial recognition, trade and receivables are measured at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted where the effect of discounting is material.

#### Fair values

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities such as cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables of the company at the statement of financial position date approximated their fair values, due to relatively short term nature of these financial instruments

#### Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated in amortised cost, except where the payables are interest free loans made by related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost

## Impairment of non-financial assets

At each statement of financial position date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its investments to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a re-valued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 2. Accounting Policies (continued)

#### Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

## Capital management

Capital is made up of stated capital, premium and retained earnings. The objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong credit ratings and capital ratios. This will ensure that the business is correctly supported and shareholder value is maximised.

The Group manages its capital structure through adjustments that are dependent on economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may choose to change or amend dividend payments to shareholders or issue new share capital to shareholders. There were no changes to the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30 September 2017.

## **Equity instruments**

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

#### Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee and suppliers services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest. At each statement of financial position date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

The fair value of share-based payments recognised in the income statement is measured by use of the Black Scholes model, which takes into account conditions attached to the vesting and exercise of the equity instruments. The expected life used in the model is adjusted; based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. The share price volatility percentage factor used in the calculation is based on management's best estimate of future share price behaviour and is selected based on past experience, future expectations and benchmarked against peer companies in the industry.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 2. Accounting Policies (continued)

## Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to write off their cost over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Computer hardware	20%
Computer software	33%
Motor vehicles	25%
Plant, machinery & equipment	20%

Useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. During the year ended 30 September 2017 the depreciation rates used were reviewed and, based on this review, the estimated useful lives of motor vehicles and plant, machinery and equipment were extended to 4 years and 5 years respectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the asset is derecognised.

## Intangibles

Purchased goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the company's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a business acquired at the date of acquisition.

Purchased goodwill is recognized as an asset, reviewed for impairment at least annually and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed. Purchased goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful life due to the expectation of the acquired business to operate in perpetuity, so is not amortised.

Customer list represents the value placed on the retained customer list at the acquisition date. The value recognises that customers, although contracted to the company are not under an obligation to use the company services.

The customer list will be amortised over a period of 5 years. An impairment review will be conducted each year and will look at significant changes in the turnover received from major customers.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 2. Accounting Policies (continued)

## Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, differ from the related actual results.

## Share based payments

The fair value of share based payments recognised in the income statement is measured by use of the Black Scholes model, which takes into account conditions attached to the vesting and exercise of the equity instruments. The expected life used in the model is adjusted; based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. The share price volatility percentage factor used in the calculation is based on management's best estimate of future share price behaviour and is selected based on past experience, future expectations and benchmarked against peer companies in the industry.

#### Amortisation

Management have estimated that the useful life of the fair value of the customer lists acquired on the acquisition to be 5 years. Although customers generally are on rolling annual contracts or projects management believe that a useful life of 5 years is a fairer representation based on the historical trading of the REACT division with its customers. The estimate will be reviewed annually and revised if the useful life is deemed to be lower or higher than 5 years based on the customer trading of existing clients of REACT division

#### Customer list valuation

Management undertake an impairment review annually of all intangible assets held. Management review goodwill by assigning it to a cash generating unit (CGU) and calculate a discounted cash flow forecast based on the assumptions outlined in Note 9. These assumptions are reviewed annually as the business changes. Customer lists are reviewed for impairment annually also using similar assumptions.

## 3. Segmental Reporting

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has one class of business, being that of specialist cleaning and decontamination services. The Group's primary reporting format is determined by the geographical segment according to the location of its establishments. There is currently only one geographic reporting segment, which is the UK. All costs are derived from the single segment.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 4. Employees and directors

	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Wages and salaries	1,028	1,009
Directors fees	89	76
Social security costs	100	122
Pension contributions	5	6
	1,222	1,213
The average monthly number of employees :		
	No.	No.
Directors	4	4
Operators and administration staff	33	32
	37	36

Details of emoluments received by Directors of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2017 were as follows:

	Salaries £'000	Fees £'000	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
G Leates	30	-	30	30
S Metcalfe	-	14	14	-
G Rummery	-	43	43	30
S Woolley	-	7	7	8
M Collingbourne	-	25	25	30
S Foster	-	-	-	10
Total	30	89	119	108

## 5. Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Auditor remuneration		
<ul><li>audit fees (Company £4,000; 2016 : £4,000)</li></ul>	33	33
- other services	1	3
Staff costs (note 4)	1,222	1,213
Less staff costs included in cost of sales	(633)	(654)
Legal and professional fees (incl AIM related costs)	`136 <sup>´</sup>	` 67
Travel expenses	96	74
Insurance	92	67
Advertising	25	46
Other expenses	153	141
Depreciation	112	119
Less depreciation included in cost of sales	(58)	(16)
Amortisation	44	` 44
Share based payments	-	22
	1,223	1,159

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 6. Income Tax

Analysis of tax expense:

Loss on ordinary activities before income tax	(438)	(288)
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in UK of 19% (2016: 20%)	(83)	(58)
Effects of: Amortisation not deductible for tax	26	38
	20	30
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes Increase in net losses carried forward	- 57	20
Corporation tax charge	-	-

The Group has estimated excess management expenses of £1,124,000 (2016: 850,000). The tax losses have resulted in a deferred tax asset of approximately £217,000 (2016: £132,000) which has not been recognised as it is uncertain whether future taxable profits will be sufficient to utilise the losses.

## 7. Loss per Share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

	Loss £'000	Weighted average Number of shares	Loss per share
Basic and diluted EPS Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders:			
Continuing operations	393	275,407,753	0.14p
Discontinued operations	45	275,407,753	0.02p

Basic and diluted earnings per share are the same, since where a loss is incurred the effect of outstanding share options and warrants is considered anti-dilutive and is ignored for the purpose of the loss per share calculation. As at 30 September 2017 there were 2,380,000 (2016: 2,380,000) outstanding share warrants and 16,524,464 (2016: 16,524,464) options which are potentially dilutive.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 8. Company's result for the period

The company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the parent company income statement account. The result for the parent company for the period was a loss of £207,000 (2016: loss of £300,000).

#### 9. Intangible assets

Group		Purchased	Customer list	
	Goodwill £'000	goodwill £'000	acquired £'000	Total £'000
Cost				
At 1 October 2016	25	1,280	220	1,525
On disposal	(25)	-	-	(25)
At 30 September 2017		1,280	220	1,500
Amortisation and impairment				
As at 1 October 2016	(25)	_	56	81
On disposal	(25)	-	-	(25)
Amortisation charge for the year	-	-	44	44
A 100 0 1 1 0017				400
As at 30 September 2017	-	-	100	100
Carrying amount				
As at 30 September 2017	-	1,280	120	1,400
As at 30 September 2016	<del></del>	1,280	164	1,444
				===

The purchased goodwill relates to intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition on the acquisition of the REACT specialist cleaning services business, an unincorporated division of Autoclenz Limited.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, by considering the net present value of discounted cash flow forecasts. Purchased goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the individual businesses acquired which are also the cash-generating units ("CGU") identified. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Directors. The projections are based on the assumption that the company can realise projected sales. A prudent approach has been applied with no residual value being factored into these calculations. If the projected sales do not materialise there is a risk that the total value of the intangible assets shown above would be impaired. A pre-tax discount rate of 5% per annum has been applied to the cashflow projections, taking into consideration the expected rate of return and various risks relating to the CGU.

Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment. At the year-end based on these assumptions there was no indication of impairment of the value of goodwill.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 10. Plant and equipment

Group	Vehicles £'000	Plant and machinery £'000	Total £'000
Cost At 30 September 2016 Additions Disposals	307 85 (57)	90 26 (6)	397 111 (63)
At 30 September 2017	335	110	445
Depreciation At 30 September 2016 Depreciation charge for the year Disposals At 30 September 2017	123 78 (40) ————————————————————————————————————	22 34 (4) ——————————————————————————————————	145 112 (44) ——————————————————————————————————
<b>Net book value</b> At 30 September 2017	174	58	232
At 30 September 2016	184	68	252
Company	Fi	xtures, fittings & equipment £'000	Total £'000
Cost At 30 September 2016 Additions		3 -	3
At 30 September 2017		3	3
<b>Depreciation</b> At 30 September 2016 Depreciation charge for the year		2	2
At 30 September 2017		2	2
Net book value At 30 September 2017		1	1
At 30 September 2016		1	1

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 11. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

## Company

Cost At 1 October 2016 Disposal of EPUK Limited	<b>£'000</b> 1,570 (10)
At 30 September 2017	1,560
Impairment At 1 October 2016 Disposal	10 (10)
At 30 September 2017	
Carrying amount At 30 September 2017	1,560
At 30 September 2016	1,560

On 12 September 2017 EPUK Limited was put into voluntary liquidation and a Liquidator appointed. Although the company had met all its debts as they fell due since acquisition there remained some uncertainty about the quantum of liabilities that may have arisen under its previous ownership. Consequently, having taken advice, the directors believed that this was the most appropriate course of action to take in order to protect the interests of shareholders.

As at 30 September 2017, the company held the following subsidiaries:

Name of company	Principal activities	Country of incorporation and place of business	Proportion of equity interest of ordinary shares
REACT SC Holdings Limited	Holding company	United Kingdom	100%
REACT Specialist Cleaning Limited (held indirectly by REACT SC Holdings Limited)	Specialist cleaning & decontamination services to the public sector	United Kingdom	100%
REACT Occupational Health Services Limited	Remediation activities and other waste management services	United Kingdom	100%
REACT Environmental Services Limited	Treatment and disposal of non-hazardous waste	United Kingdom	100%

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 12. Trade and other receivables

~				-	
C	u	п	е	п	ı

Current	Group 2017 £'000	Group 2016 £'000	Company 2017 £'000	Company 2016 £'000
Trade receivables Amounts owed by Group	672	513	-	-
undertakings	-	-	834	618
Other receivables	-	143	15	7
Prepayments and accrued income	88	132	11	3
	760	788	860	628
13. Cash and cash equivalents				
	Group	Group	Company	Company
	2017	2016	2016	2016
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Cash and bank balances	631	931	529 ———	905

## 14. Called Up Share Capital

	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Issued share capital comprises:		
275,407,753 Ordinary shares of 0.25p each	689	689

The ordinary shares are non-redeemable and provide holders with one vote per share on a vote at a company meeting. They also provide one equal right per share in any ordinary dividend declared and one equal right per share in the distribution of any surplus due to the ordinary shareholders on a winding up.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

#### 15. Trade and other payables

#### **Current:**

	Group	Group	Company	Company
	2017	2016	2017	2016
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Trade payables	215	131	32	-
Accrued expenses	161	142	124	93
Social security and other taxes	22	79	-	-
	398	352	156	93

## 16 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%, the movement on the deferred tax liability is as shown below:

Group	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
At 1 October 2016 Deferred tax on capital allowance timing difference	21 -	20 1
At 30 September 2017	21	21

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets as the directors believe it is uncertain that these assets will not be recovered.

## 17. Related Party Disclosures

## Group and company

During the period to 30 September 2017 the Group was charged £25,000 (2016: £30,000) by Morrison Kingsley Consultants Limited for director services provided by M Collingbourne. At the year end, the Group owed £nil (2016: £2,500) to Morrison Kingsley Consultant Limited, a company controlled by M Collingbourne. In addition the Group was charged £42,500 (2016: £30,000) by Autoclenz Limited for director services provided by G Rummery, £7,292 (2016: £8,333) by RSW advisory services LLP for director services provided by S Woolley and £13,556 (2016: £nil) by Metcalfe Consultancy for director services provided by S Melcalfe. There were no amounts outstanding in respect of these services at 30 September 2017 or 2016.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 18. Ultimate Controlling Party

No one shareholder has control of the company.

#### 19. Warrants

On 17 August 2015 the company issued warrants to GM Leates to subscribe for 2,380,000 new ordinary shares in the company exercisable at a price of 1.68p per 0.25p ordinary share, exercisable after 12 months. The warrants have a 10 year exercise period ending on 17 August 2025, and lapse in the event that GM Leates ceases to be Chairman of the company. No warrants were exercised in the current or prior year.

The fair value of the share warrants issued on 17 August 2015 with an exercise price of 1.68p is £0.00 and was derived using the Black Scholes model. The following assumptions were used in the calculations:

Share price at grant date	1.68p
Risk-free rate	1.00%
Volatility	50%
Expected life	3.5 years

Expected volatility is based on a conservative estimate for the company. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

£Nil (2016: £11,875) has been recognised during the period for the share based payments over the vesting period.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

## 20. Share options

The company had introduced a share option programme to grant share options as an incentive for employees. Each share option converts into one ordinary share of the company on exercise. No amounts are paid or payable by the recipient on receipt of the option and the company has no legal obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash. The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights prior to the date on which the options are exercised. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date of expiry.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

	Number of options		Average exercise price	
	2017	2016	2017	2016
	No.	No.	£	£
Outstanding at the beginning of the period	16,524,564	-	0.0168	-
Granted during the year		16,524,564		0.0168
Outstanding at the end of the period	16,524,564	16,524,564	0.0168	0.0168

The Options shall vest in full and be capable of exercise upon the average mid-market closing price per ordinary share of 0.25p each in the capital of the Company (as derived from the AIM Appendix of the Daily Official List and as certified in writing by the Company's stockbrokers) exceeding 2.5p for 30 consecutive business days. £nil (2016: £10,209) has been recognised during the period for the share based payments over the vesting period.

## 21. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash balances and receivables and payables that arise directly from its operations. The main risks the Group faces are liquidity risk, capital risk and foreign currency risk.

The board regularly reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. The Group's policies for managing these risks are summarised below and have been applied throughout the period. The numerical disclosures exclude short-term debtors and their carrying amount is considered to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

## Interest risk

The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as it has limited interest bearing liabilities at the period end.

#### Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk as services are invoiced on completion. This risk is mitigated as most large customers have been customers for several years and have exemplary credit ratings. The board also ensure robust procedures are in place to ensure all services are invoiced promptly and all payments received in a timely manner.

## Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 September 2017

#### 21. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

#### Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The responsibility for liquidity risks management rest with the Board of Directors, which has established appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short term and long-term funding risks management requirements.

During the period under review, the Group has not utilised any borrowing facilities. The Group manages liquidity risks by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

## Capital risk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

#### 22. Discontinued operations

On 12 September 2017 EPUK Limited was put into voluntary liquidation and a Liquidator appointed. Although the company had met all its debts as they fell due since acquisition there remained some uncertainty about the quantum of liabilities that may have arisen under its previous ownership. Consequently, having taken advice, the directors believed that this was the most appropriate course of action to take in order to protect the interests of shareholders.

The trading results of the discontinued operations were as follows:

	2017 £'000	2016 £'000
Turnover Expenses	9 (54)	45 (161)
Loss before and after tax of discontinued operations Impairment of goodwill	(45) -	(116) (25)
	(45)	(141)
Operating cashflow	(5)	(106)